

Subd. 4. Any member who retires with a deferred annuity payable pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 1953, Chapter 353, as amended by Laws 1955, Chapter 815, may select an optional annuity payable as a joint and survivor annuity which shall be in lieu of the straight life deferred annuity otherwise payable. This optional annuity shall be the actuarial equivalent of such straight life deferred annuity. The selection of this optional annuity shall be made at least 30 days before the deferred annuity payments are to begin except that any person who began receiving a deferred annuity after June 30, 1957, and before July 1, 1961, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 1953, Chapter 353, as amended by Laws 1955, Chapter 815, may select the optional annuity provided herein by making application to the board of trustees before January 1, 1962.

Approved June 7, 1961.

EXTRA SESSION

CHAPTER 88—S. F. No. 7

[Coded in Part]

An act relating to the administration of state government; appropriating moneys therefor and limiting the use thereof; providing for the transfer of certain moneys in the state treasury; adjusting the salaries of certain state officers and employees; authorizing land acquisition by gift, purchase, or condemnation in certain cases; limiting the amount of fees to be collected for deposit in the state treasury; and providing penalties for misusing funds appropriated hereby.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. Expenses of state government appropriations. Except as herein otherwise specifically provided, the sums hereinafter set forth in the columns designated "APPROPRIATIONS," or so much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated out of the general revenue fund in the state treasury, or any other fund herein designated, for the purposes specified in the following sections of this act, to be available for the fiscal years indicated for each purpose. The figures "1961," "1962" and "1963" wherever used in this act, shall mean that the appropriation or appro-

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

priations listed thereunder shall be available for the year ending June 30, 1961, June 30, 1962, and June 30, 1963, respectively.

	APPROPRIATIONS Available for the Year Ending June 30		
	1961	1962	1963
	\$	\$	\$
<i>Sec. 2. THE LEGISLATURE</i>			
Subdivision 1. For the Senate			
Salaries, supplies and expense		200,000	520,000
Subd. 2. For the House of Representatives			
Salaries, supplies and expense		380,000	800,000
Any balances remaining on June 30, 1961 and June 30, 1962, in subdivisions 1 and 2, shall not cancel but be carried forward to the following year. Should the appropriations in subdivisions 1 and 2 for either year be insufficient, then the appropriation for the other year shall be available therefor.			
Subd. 3. For the Senate			
Printing and binding			90,000
Subd. 4. For the House of Representatives			
Printing and binding			110,000
The state senate and the house of representatives may, as needed, utilize the services of the state printer.			
Subd. 5. Legislative Advisory Committee		1,000	1,000
Subd. 6. Legislative Research Committee		75,000	75,000
Interim committees enacted by the 1961 legislature are hereby requested to have secretarial and such other services as are necessary provided by the legislative research committee. The reimbursement for such services is			

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

hereby reappropriated to the legislative research committee.

Any balance remaining on June 30, 1962 shall not cancel, but be carried forward to the following year.

Subd. 7. State Claims Commission	15,000	
--	--------	--

Any balance remaining on June 30, 1962 shall not cancel but be carried forward to the following year.

Subd. 8. Legislative Buildings Commission	37,000	
---	--------	--

Any balance remaining on June 30, 1962 shall not cancel, but be carried forward to the following year.

Subd. 9. General Contingent ..	175,000	150,000
--------------------------------	---------	---------

The above appropriations to be expended by the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory committee, as provided by M. S. 356.17.

Should the appropriations in subdivision 9 for either year be insufficient, then the appropriation for the other year shall be available therefor.

Subd. 10. Income Tax Contingent	175,000	
---------------------------------------	---------	--

The amount appropriated by subdivision 10 is transferred and reappropriated from the income tax school fund for the purpose of supplementing any requirements of the department of taxation, division of income tax for salaries, supplies and expense and any requirements of the department of administration, state auditor and state treasurer for salaries, supplies and expense in connection with the collection and refundment of withholding income taxes, to be administered by the legislative advisory committee, as provided by M.S. 356.17. The balance to be carried forward the second year.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 11. Game and Fish Contingent	100,000	
--	---------	--

The amounts appropriated by subdivision 11 are transferred and re-appropriated from the game and fish fund for the purpose of supplementing any requirements of the division of game and fish, for salaries, supplies and expense, to be administered by the legislative advisory committee as provided by M.S. 356.17, the balance to be carried forward the second year.

Subd. 12. Motor Vehicle Contingent	25,000	
--	--------	--

The amount appropriated by subdivision 12 is transferred and re-appropriated from the highway user tax distribution fund to supplement the needs for salaries, supplies and expense of the motor vehicle division, and is to be spent with the approval of the governor and the legislative advisory committee, as provided by M.S. 356.17, the balance to be carried forward the second year.

Sec. 3. GOVERNOR

Subdivision 1. Salaries	90,898	93,649
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	17,024	14,881
Subd. 3. Governor's Portrait		2,000
Subd. 4. Personal expenses connected with office	10,000	10,000
Subd. 5. Expenses of delegate to Indian Council Meeting	300	300

Sec. 4. CIVIL DEFENSE

Subdivision 1. Salaries	92,774	94,646
-------------------------------	--------	--------

Approved Complement—12

Plus such additional personnel as financed by federal funds for the period that federal funds are available.

Subd. 2 State equipment and aid	20,000	20,000
Subd. 3. Supplies and expense....	25,000	25,000

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 5. **LIEUTENANT GOVERNOR**

Subdivision 1. Salary and expenses	2,900	5,900	6,300
--	-------	-------	-------

Sec. 6. **STATE AUDITOR**

Subdivision 1. Salaries		278,219	284,762
-------------------------------	--	---------	---------

Approved Complement—50

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense		53,267	54,027
-------------------------------------	--	--------	--------

Provided that the auditor's biennial report shall be printed in summary form notwithstanding any law to the contrary.

Subd. 3. Contributory share—Public Employees Retirement Association

a. Legislative members	60,092.32		
------------------------------	-----------	--	--

b. Former state employees	14,407.20		
---------------------------------	-----------	--	--

Of the amounts appropriated by subdivision 3, item b., \$142.85 is to be paid from the highway users tax distribution fund, \$1,185.38 is to be paid from the rural credit fund, and \$3,058.26 from the trunk highway fund.

Subd. 4. Civil Air Patrol

a. Supplies, expense and equipment		10,000	10,000
--	--	--------	--------

To be disbursed by the state auditor on certification of Commander, the Minnesota Wing of the Civil Air Patrol.

Sec. 7. **STATE TREASURER**

Subdivision 1. Salaries	3,650	128,944	129,936
-------------------------------	-------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—21

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense....		52,685	53,005
-----------------------------------	--	--------	--------

The amounts appropriated by subdivisions 1 and 2 include salaries and expenses for Liquor Stamps and Labels.

Sec. 8. **PUBLIC EXAMINER**

Subdivision 1. Salaries		218,146	222,286
-------------------------------	--	---------	---------

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Approved Complement—31

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense 14,313 13,963

Sec. 9. DEPARTMENT OF TAX-
ATION

Subdivision 1. Salaries 1,095,314 1,107,865

Approved Complement—219

Of the amounts appropriated by subdivision 1 hereof, \$657,189 for the year ending June 30, 1962, and \$664,719 for the year ending June 30, 1963, shall be transferred and reappropriated from the fund known as the income tax school fund.

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense.... 439,147 443,047

Of the amounts appropriated by subdivision 2, hereof, \$355,989 for the year ending June 30, 1962, and \$365,910 for the year ending June 30, 1963 shall be transferred and reappropriated from the fund known as the income tax school fund. The above appropriation includes expenses for collection of rural cooperative electric taxes. Taxes retained by department to be deposited in general revenue fund. The above appropriations include appropriations heretofore made for commissioners' equalization and appraisal fund.

The amounts provided in subdivisions 1 and 2 include Tobacco Products Tax, Inheritance and Gift Tax and Documents Tax administration.

Subd. 3. Reassessment expense.... 25,000

Any unexpended balance in the first year shall not cancel but shall be available for the second year of the biennium.

Subd. 4. Income Tax Division

a. Salaries 1,130,572 1,145,011

Approved Complement—195

b. Supplies and expense 283,607 278,217

The amount provided by subdivi-

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

sion 4 includes the Equalization Aid Review Committee and is appropriated from the income tax school fund.

Subd. 5. Petroleum Division

a. Salaries	473,708	477,174
Approved Complement—88		
b. Supplies and expense	99,647	83,847
c. Bond premiums for gasoline tax collectors	15,500	16,500

Sec. 10. STATE BOARD OF TAX APPEALS

Subdivision 1. Salaries	21,273	21,283
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense....	2,000	2,000

The amounts appropriated in subdivision 1 provide for compensation for the members of the board of tax appeals at the rate of \$35 per day and includes an amount sufficient for employment of necessary seasonal help for vacation relief.

AL Sec. 11. ATTORNEY GENERAL

Subdivision 1. Salaries	289,340	291,794
Approved Complement—34		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	26,620	32,669
Subd. 3. Special Contingent Appropriation	15,000	15,000

The balance shall not cancel on June 30, 1962, but be available for the second year.

Subd. 4. Milk and Dairy Products Investigation	17,326	
--	--------	--

To carry out the provisions of M. S. 1957, Sec. 8.13. The balance shall not cancel on June 30, 1962, but be available for the second year.

Subd. 5. Criminal Apprehension Bureau

a. Salaries	194,125	196,276
-------------------	---------	---------

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Approved Complement—28

b. Supplies and expense		46,668	45,023
c. Police School supplies and expense		10,000	10,000

Sec. 12. DISTRICT COURT

To be disbursed by the state auditor.

Subdivision 1. Salaries	12,165	851,000	851,000
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense....	20,450	47,500	47,500

Should the appropriation for either year be insufficient, then the appropriation for the other year shall be available therefor.

Sec. 13. RETIRED SUPREME AND DISTRICT COURT JUDGES AND COMMISSIONER

Subdivision 1. Salaries		113,000	113,000
-------------------------------	--	---------	---------

Should the appropriation for either year be insufficient, then the appropriation for the other year shall be available therefor.

The amounts appropriated for salaries for the fiscal years ending June 30, 1960, and June 30, 1961, by Extra Session Laws 1959, Chapter 61, Sec. 13 and the amounts appropriated by Sec. 13, subdivision 1 hereof for fiscal years ending June 30, 1962 and June 30, 1963, shall be used for the payment of salaries, retirement benefits and survivorship benefits to retired supreme and district court judges, commissioner, and widows of supreme and district court judges.

Sec. 14. SUPREME COURT

Subdivision 1. Salaries		284,107	286,956
-------------------------------	--	---------	---------

Of the amount appropriated for salaries herein, \$11,000 is for the salary of the clerk of the supreme court each year, and \$8,000 is for the salary of the deputy clerk each year.

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense		12,229	9,194
------------------------------------	--	--------	-------

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 3. Publishing Minnesota Reports	12,870	12,870
Subd. 4. Referee Fees for Cases of Original Jurisdiction	400	
The balance on June 30, 1962 shall not cancel but be available for the second year.		
Subd. 5. Court Commissioner Salaries	3,500	3,500
Sec. 15. REVISOR OF STATUTES		
Subdivision 1. Salaries	70,524	71,793
Of the amount appropriated for salaries herein, not to exceed \$15,000 each year is for salary of the revisor, and not to exceed \$12,000 each year is for the salary of the assistant revisor. The salary to be set by the supreme court.		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	2,712	2,722
Subd. 3. Bill Drafting — salaries and expense for the 1963 legislature	5,000	45,000
Any balance remaining in subdivision 3, on June 30, 1962 shall not cancel but be available for the second year.		
Sec. 16. DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATION		
Subdivision 1. Salaries	502,542	508,866
Approved Complement—77		
This includes salary for the position of a dietitian supervisor whose services may be available to the department of public welfare, the department of corrections and the department of education in its school lunch program. The named position is transferred from the department of public welfare to the department of administration.		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	44,000	42,000
Subd. 3. Printing Biennial Budget		17,000

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 4. Printing Session Laws —Bound Volume and Newspaper Supplement		67,000
Subd. 5. Minnesota Statutes Re- volving	52,244	
Subd. 6. Minnesota State Em- ployees Merit Award Board	2,000	2,000
Subd. 7. Division of Public Prop- erty		
a. Salaries	1,080,352	1,093,711
Approved Complement—244		
b. Supplies and expense	469,087	476,000
The commissioner shall lease and collect rent for the portions of 117 West University Avenue and the centennial building occupied by state departments, the rental to be based upon the amount of space occupied, all such rentals to be credited, as income in the general revenue fund in the state treasury.		
c. Special repairs and replace- ments	16,500	16,500
Subd. 8. Central Services		
a. Salaries	38,700	40,083
Approved Complement—10		
b. Supplies and expense	13,470	7,985
c. Payroll preparation	71,181	71,235
To reimburse the division of central services for the cost of preparing payrolls for state departments, agencies, and institutions whose salaries are provided by annual appropriations made by the legislature and who use the facilities of the division. However, in the case of payrolls which are financed in whole or in part with federal funds, that portion of the cost of payroll preparation which is chargeable to federal funds shall not be reimbursed from item c. but shall be reimbursed from such federal funds, and such amounts as are necessary are		

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

hereby appropriated from such funds for that purpose.

The cost of preparing payrolls for state departments, agencies, and institutions whose salaries are provided by open, standing, continuing, or revolving appropriations or so-called dedicated receipt accounts shall be reimbursed to the division of central services from such appropriations or dedicated receipt accounts and such amounts as are necessary are hereby appropriated from such appropriations and accounts for that purpose.

Of the amounts appropriated by item c., \$5,231 each year is appropriated from the game and fish fund, \$9,359 each year is appropriated from the income tax school fund, and \$125 each year is appropriated from the special revenue fund—aeronautics account.

Sec. 17. EXECUTIVE COUNCIL

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense	1,700	1,700
---	-------	-------

Sec. 18. BOARD OF INVESTMENT

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense	44,865	46,765
---	--------	--------

Approved Complement—5

Sec. 19. SECRETARY OF STATE

Subdivision 1. Salaries	67,895	68,873
-------------------------------	--------	--------

Approved Complement—10

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	10,940	10,000
-------------------------------------	--------	--------

The amounts provided in subdivisions 1 and 2 include administration of charitable contributions act.

Subd. 3. Printing legislative manual		46,500
--	--	--------

Subd. 4. Publishing constitutional amendments	33,915	
---	--------	--

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 5. Election expense and nomination fees	20,000	27,000
Subd. 6. Mobile Home Registration		
a. Salaries, supplies and expense	13,371	13,557
Approved Complement—2		
Subd. 7. Motor Vehicle Division		
a. Salaries	880,956	901,049
Approved Complement—165		
b. Supplies and expense	326,700	292,275
c. License Plates	1,354,000	354,000

Materials purchased to be used in the manufacture of motor vehicle number plates for the state shall be tested as to conformance with specifications established by the secretary of state and the division of purchases in a privately operated laboratory to be designated by the division of purchases. The cost of such laboratory service shall be included in the cost of the materials purchased. The expenses of the state reformatory for men in manufacturing number plates under Laws 1957, Chapter 412, shall include the cost of the delivery of such number plates to the secretary of state at the places which he may designate. Notwithstanding any other provision of this act or of any other law, the appropriations made in subdivision 7, c. for the years 1962 and 1963 all be available for allotment, encumbrance and expenditure from and after the passage of this act. All materials and all equipment used in the manufacture of such number plates shall be approved by the commissioner of administration. Notwithstanding any provision in Laws 1957, Chapter 412, to the contrary, whenever the state reformatory for men shall certify to the commissioner of administration that expenses have been incurred for material, labor and any additional equipment

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

which may have been purchased for the manufacture of number plates, the commissioner of administration may, even though a number plate order has not been completed, approve the certification and direct the auditor and treasurer to pay such expenses or to reimburse the state reformatory for men therefor from the moneys appropriated hereby. If the division of purchases incurs expenses for material or for any additional equipment which may have been purchased for the manufacture of number plates, the commissioner of administration may in a like manner direct the auditor and treasurer to pay such expenses.

The moneys appropriated by subdivision 7, items a., b., and c. are hereby appropriated from the highway user tax distribution fund. None of such appropriations are chargeable against the revenue fund.

d. Minneapolis Deputy Registrar	41,144	41,956
e. Dealer's Division		
1. Salaries	12,792	13,311
<i>Approved Complement—3</i>		
2. Supplies and expense	500	500
f. Chauffeur's License Division		
1. Salaries	62,059	63,203
<i>Approved Complement—9</i>		
2. Supplies and expense	23,030	22,675
Sec. 20. DEPARTMENT OF CIVIL SERVICE		
Subdivision 1. Salaries	310,355	315,203
<i>Approved Complement—58</i>		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	28,128	26,787
Sec. 21. ARCHIVES COMMISSION		
Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense	49,300	46,716

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Approved Complement—7

Sec. 22. MUNICIPAL COMMISSION

Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense 19,424 19,752

Approved Complement—2

Sec. 23. ADJUTANT GENERAL

Subdivision 1. Salaries 161,179 162,875

Approved Complement—26

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense 10,795 12,645

Subd. 3. National Guard

a. Salaries 79,746 80,683

Approved Complement—11

b. Supplies and expense 63,595 65,395

Subd. 4. Camp Ripley

a. Salaries 50,502 52,359

Approved Complement—18

b. Supplies and expense 30,786 30,786

Subd. 5. Armory Maintenance and Repairs

a. Salaries 296,219 300,247

b. Supplies and expense 415,000 415,000

Notwithstanding any other provision of this act or any other law, the appropriations made in Section 23 shall be available for allotment, encumbrance and expenditure upon passage of this act, for the purpose of financing Federal reimbursement contracts.

Sec. 24. DIVISION OF BANKING

Subdivision 1. Salaries 367,264 372,006

Approved Complement—52

Of the amounts appropriated by subdivision 1, \$7,212 for the year ending June 30, 1962, and \$7,224 for the year ending June 30, 1963, is hereby appropriated

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

from the rural credit expense fund.

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	47,944	47,802
-------------------------------	--------	--------

Of the amounts appropriated by subdivision 2, \$2,092 for the year ending June 30, 1962, and \$2,067 for the year ending June 30, 1963, is hereby appropriated from the rural credit expense fund for the accounts listed as items 2, 3, and 4, Sec. 45, Chapter 740, Laws 1949.

The amounts specified as appropriated from the rural credit expense fund in subdivisions 1 and 2 are the maximum amounts that may be expended for any purpose relating to rural credits for which an appropriation is made herein during the fiscal years, June 30, 1962 and June 30, 1963.

Sec. 25. DIVISION OF INSURANCE

Subdivision 1. Salaries	232,711	236,465
-------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—35

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense ..	21,951	19,985
----------------------------------	--------	--------

Subd. 3. Fire Marshal

a. Salaries	108,700	110,789
-------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—17

b. Supplies and expense	26,750	23,800
-------------------------------	--------	--------

Sec. 26. DIVISION OF SECURITIES

Subdivision 1. Salaries	63,931	65,555
-------------------------------	--------	--------

Approved Complement—9

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	6,072	5,160
-------------------------------	-------	-------

Sec. 27. RAILROAD AND WAREHOUSE COMMISSION

Subdivision 1. Administration, Including Motor Bus and Truck

a. Salaries	402,167	407,026
-------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—62

Provided that no part of the amount allowed for salaries shall

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

be paid for the salary of an assistant or special assistant attorney general.

b. Supplies and expense	57,476	41,015
Subd. 2. Weights and Measures		
a. Salaries	120,000	121,392
Approved Complement—19		
b. Supplies and expense	31,925	29,985
Subd. 3. Grain Inspection		
a. Salaries	2,127,372	2,138,593
b. Supplies and expense	136,780	135,380

Items a and b include necessary expenses of a board of grain standards, which board is hereby created. It shall consist of the chief grain inspector, appointed pursuant to M.S., Section 233.17, and the chief deputy inspectors of Minneapolis and Duluth, appointed pursuant to M.S. Section 233.18. This board shall have jurisdiction over all grain standards now or hereafter established in Minnesota. It shall meet annually on or before June 15, and establish grades of all grain subject to state inspection, which shall be known as the "Minnesota grades", and all grain received at any public warehouse shall be graded accordingly. Such grades shall not be changed before the next annual meeting without the concurrence of at least two members of the board. At the time of establishing "Minnesota grades" it shall be the duty of such board to establish such rules and regulations as such board shall deem necessary for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of Minnesota Statutes 1957, Sections 233.135 to 233.137; and shall publish such rules and regulations in such manner as the railroad and warehouse commission shall approve. In establishing the grades, in addition to the physical qualities of the grain, there shall be taken into consideration the milling and bread-producing

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

quality of all grain products used as human food.

The board of grain appeals, as constituted immediately prior to the enactment of this act, is hereby abolished.

c. Overtime 190,000 190,000

For the purpose of computing payment of overtime, employees of the grain inspection division shall be compensated for each week's work on the following basis: For time worked up to 40 hours, regular salary; for time worked in excess of 40 hours in any one week, one and one-half times his regular salary, provided, however, that no employee shall receive overtime for any one day except for time worked in excess of 10 hours in that day, or until he has worked 40 hours in that week, except that such employee shall receive one and one-half times his regular salary for time worked on Sundays and regular holidays, irrespective of the number of hours worked during any one day, or during said week. The Commission is directed to adjust its schedule of fees before the end of each fiscal year to provide that the initial charge made for services to be rendered during the next fiscal year shall be sufficient to provide an income during the latter fiscal year equal to the amount of the appropriation for that year for salaries, overtime, expenses, which shall include, without limitation an amount for state retirement and social security contributions. If the income from the fees provided for herein during any fiscal year shall be more than 103 percent of such appropriation for that year, the Commission, in adjusting its schedule of fees for use in the next fiscal year, shall fix the fees to produce income in the amount of such appropriation less the amount of such excess over 103 percent of

Changes or additions indicated by italics, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

the appropriation first referred to herein. If the income from the fees provided for herein during any fiscal year shall be less than the appropriation for that year, the Commission, in adjusting its schedule of fees for use in the next fiscal year, shall fix the fees to produce income in the amount of the appropriation for the latter year plus the amount of the difference between the appropriation for the year first referred to herein and the total income from such fees during that year, and plus 3 percent of the total appropriation for both the latter and first year referred to herein. Such schedule of fees shall provide that any elevator, mill or other commission business requesting the service of a weigher, shall pay a minimum charge of \$1.75 per hour for each weigher requested or assigned. Any fees earned by such weigher shall be credited against the charge made therefor. Such minimum charge shall be assessed only after taking into consideration all fees earned and all hours charged. Excess fees earned over hours charged shall be carried forward from month to month during any one fiscal year. When deemed necessary by the chief of grain inspection, a charge for actual overtime costs may be made.

d. Grain Inspection Contingent Fund 600,000

The above appropriation to be expended by the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory committee, as provided by M.S. 356.17. The balance to be carried forward the second year.

e. To remodel and provide for an addition to the grain inspection building at Duluth, subject to provisions of M.S. 1957, Chapter 16 40,000

The moneys expended under this

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

item are part of the operating expenses of the grain inspection division for the biennium and shall be so considered in adjusting the schedule of fees.

Sec. 28. LABOR AND INDUSTRY

Subdivision 1. Salaries	584,057	589,989
-------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—96

The amounts above provide for the item of transcript suspense and assignment of a court reporter and a referee to the Duluth area.

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	59,004	58,074
------------------------------------	--------	--------

The amounts appropriated for "salaries" and "supplies and expense" are to include salaries, supplies and expense for the administration of the voluntary apprenticeship law and for control of occupational diseases.

Subd. 3. Voluntary Apprenticeship Advisory Group—Per Diem	600	600
---	-----	-----

Subd. 4. Division of Boiler Inspection

a. Salaries	121,798	123,290
-------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—21

b. Supplies and expense	19,384	18,944
-------------------------------	--------	--------

Sec. 29. LIQUOR CONTROL DEPARTMENT

Subdivision 1. Salaries	207,197	211,100
-------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—35

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	43,000	43,000
-------------------------------	--------	--------

Sec. 30. LABOR CONCILIATOR

Subdivision 1. Salaries	100,167	101,745
-------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—12

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	18,789	18,629
-------------------------------	--------	--------

Sec. 31. DEPARTMENT OF BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

Subdivision 1. Salaries	157,279	159,321
-------------------------------	---------	---------

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Approved Complement—23		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	233,000	220,000
Sec. 32. COMPENSATION INSURANCE BOARD		
Subdivision 1. Salaries	22,199	22,239
Approved Complement—3		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	1,899	1,586
Sec. 33. DEPARTMENT OF AERONAUTICS		
Subdivision 1. Salaries	138,798	140,108
Approved Complement—17		
Subd. 2. Supplies and Expense	52,525	53,805
The amounts appropriated by subdivisions 1 and 2 are transferred and reappropriated from the account known as the state airports.		
Sec. 34. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE		
Subdivision 1. Salaries	870,475	879,403
Approved Complement—134		
The above appropriation is for salaries for the accounts listed as Items 1, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 12, 13, 13½, and 14 of Sec. 28. Chapter 660, Laws of 1943.		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	198,985	177,085
The above appropriation is for supplies and expense for the accounts listed as Items 2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 13½, and 14 of Sec. 28. Chapter 660, Laws of 1943, and for butter grading. Any butter purchased may, if marketable under the laws of this state, be sold and the proceeds of such sale shall be credited to this appropriation.		
Subd. 3. Poultry Breeding and Inspection		
a. Salaries, supplies and expense	43,167	43,173
Subd. 4. Weed Control on Tax Exempt and Tax Forfeited Land	9,000	9,000

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 5. White Pine Blister Rust Control	7,500	7,500
---	-------	-------

Subd. 6. Quality Egg Program	10,000	
------------------------------	--------	--

The above appropriation is to be used for the purchase of motor vehicles.

Subd. 7. Market and Produce Inspection

a. Salaries, supplies and expense	40,000	40,000
---	--------	--------

The fees for services performed by activities financed by subdivision 7 above shall be reviewed, and if necessary, adjusted each six months to the end that such fees shall insofar as it is practicable, cover the cost of the services rendered. All moneys collected by authority of M.S. 1957, Sec. 21.53 and all balances now on hand received from such source are hereby appropriated for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of M.S. 1957, Sections 21.47 to 21.58 inclusive. All moneys collected by authority of M.S. 1957, Sec. 27.07 for services rendered pursuant to written contracts are hereby appropriated for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of M.S. 1957, Chapter 27 and the moneys so collected and appropriated shall be in addition to and not in substitution for the sums appropriated in this section. All funds, sums of money or other resources paid or furnished to the department of agriculture, dairy and food by the federal government shall be credited to and become a part of the various appropriations provided for in this section, and all such funds, sums of money or other resources so credited to the various appropriations shall be in addition to and not in substitution for any sum appropriated or otherwise made available by this section.

Provided that the fees for services performed by activities fi-

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

nanced by subdivision 3, shall be fixed by the commissioner of agriculture with the approval of the commissioner of administration at the beginning of each fiscal year and reviewed and adjusted, if necessary, at the end of each six month period in order that the fees prescribed shall insofar as practicable cover the cost of all services rendered.

Sec. 35. DEPARTMENT OF CONSERVATION

There is hereby appropriated to the commissioner of conservation, the following amounts for the following purposes, said amounts to be under the control of and to be expended by direction of the commissioner of conservation.

Subdivision 1. Conservation Administration

a. Salaries	548,309	555,831
-------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—87

Provided that of the amount appropriated in subdivision 1 a., hereof, \$328,985 for the fiscal year 1962 and \$333,499 for the fiscal year 1963 shall be transferred and reappropriated from the fund known as game and fish on the books of the state auditor and the records of the game and fish division.

b. Supplies and expense	131,000	120,000
-------------------------------	---------	---------

Provided, that of the amount appropriated in subdivision 1 b., hereof, \$78,600 for the fiscal year 1962, and \$72,000 for the fiscal year 1963 shall be transferred and reappropriated from the fund known as game and fish on the books of the state auditor and the records of the game and fish division.

This item includes moneys for the publication of the Conservation Volunteer which shall not be published more than four times in any fiscal year.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

c. Notwithstanding the date limitations specified in Laws 1959, Chapter 592, Section 27, Subdivision 1, all of the moneys credited to the boat and water safety account established thereunder are appropriated for the purposes and in the manner specified therein for use during the biennium ending June 30, 1963.

Subd. 2. Division of Waters

a. Salaries	139,088	141,242
-------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—20

b. Supplies and expense	13,500	13,000
-------------------------------	--------	--------

c. For the construction of dams, dikes, and other works necessary to maintain lake levels and divert waters, where necessary, including the repairing and remodeling of dams and other control works for the Lake Carlos Dam in Douglas County, the Snake River at the outlet of Cross Lake in Pine County, Double Lake in Cottonwood County, Lightening Lake in Grant County, Lake Bronson in Kittson County, and Platte River in Morrison County

104,000

This item includes necessary moneys for the acquisition by gift, purchase, or condemnation proceedings under M.S. 1957, Chapter 117, as amended, of lands and easements where necessary.

d. Water Control Study	2,500	
------------------------------	-------	--

2,500

For a study of the needs of modifying Nicollet County Ditch No. 30A so as to construct water control devices upon the Main branch and branch No. 9 in order to divert water therefrom into Swan Lake, thereby supplementing the natural water supply in said lake; the report of the study to be made to the Water Resources Board which board shall make recommendations to the 1963 legislature in connection therewith.

The amount appropriated by sub-

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

division 2, items c. and d. shall be transferred from the game and fish fund. Any balance remaining on June 30, 1962, shall not cancel but be available until completion of the projects.

e. Channel improvement 20,000

For the removal of snags and improving the channel of the Minnesota River. Any balance remaining on June 30, 1962, shall not cancel but be available for the second year.

f. Hydrologic studies 70,000 70,000

Approved Complement—3

The above amounts include provisions for the items of stream gauging, lake level control, and underground waters survey.

Provided any balance remaining on June 30, 1962 shall not cancel but be available for the second year. The balance remaining from the amount appropriated by Extra Session Laws 1959, Chapter 61, Sec. 35, item 2. d., shall not cancel on June 30, 1961, but be available until June 30, 1963.

Subd. 3. Division of Forestry

a. Cooperative Forestry

1. Salaries 1,338,223 1,378,313

Approved Complement—226

As federal funds become available during the biennium ending June 30, 1963, to finance positions which were financed in fiscal year 1961 from federal funds, the approved complement and state funds shall be reduced accordingly.

Provided, that of the amounts appropriated by subdivision 3. a. (1) hereof, \$100,000 for the year ending June 30, 1962, and \$100,000 for the year ending June 30, 1963, is transferred and re-appropriated from the account known as the consolidated con-

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

ervation areas account, M.S. 1957, Section 84A.55.

2. Supplies and expense	335,000	325,000
-------------------------------	---------	---------

All receipts from rents of buildings under custodianship of the division of forestry are hereby reappropriated to subdivision 3. a. (2) hereof.

b. State Land Management

1. Salaries	341,500	346,976
-------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—44

2. Supplies and expense	95,000	90,000
-------------------------------	--------	--------

3. Fire Fighting	83,000	83,000
------------------------	--------	--------

Provided that of the amount appropriated by Item 3, \$40,000 each year shall be appropriated from the game and fish fund.

The balance remaining in the amounts provided in Item 3 for the year ending June 30, 1962, shall not cancel but shall be available for the purpose of fire prevention for the year ending June 30, 1963. Any balance remaining on June 30, 1963, may be used for the purchase of fire fighting equipment.

Subd. 4. Division of Lands and Minerals

a. Salaries	418,397	423,565
-------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—66

b. Supplies and expense	39,000	41,000
-------------------------------	--------	--------

Subd. 5. Division of Game and Fish

a. Administration and Warden Service

1. Salaries	990,407	994,869
-------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—155

Of the amounts appropriated for salaries, provision has been made for overtime to game wardens and game warden pilots. If the game warden positions are placed in civil service range 19, no over-

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

time shall be paid to either game wardens or game warden pilots.

2. Supplies and expense	590,966	305,611
b. Fisheries—General	872,172	857,671

Approved complement—110

Provided that of the amount appropriated for fiscal year 1962, \$10,000 shall be used for a fish habitat improvement project in the Phalen Lake-Garvais Lake Chain in Ramsey County.

The Commissioner of Conservation is authorized to enter into an agreement with the County of Ramsey and City of St. Paul to expedite and supplement such project.

c. Cooperative Rearing Pond Assistance	7,500	7,500
d. Game—General	612,287	660,573

Approved Complement—68

e. Rough Fish Removal—Day Labor	312,908	300,168
---------------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved complement—5.5 full time equivalent employees, exclusive of seasonal employees.

The receipts from this activity shall be deposited in the game and fish fund. Provided \$2,500 each year shall be expended at the discretion of the commissioner of conservation for experimentation in rough fish removal.

f. Rough Fish Removal Contract Revolving Fund

Approved complement—3.5 full time equivalent employees, exclusive of seasonal employees.

Item f. shall continue to act as a revolving fund to be used for rough fish removal contract activities and all receipts from such activities are to be credited to said fund and all moneys in said fund shall be available for use. If additional moneys are needed

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

for continuance of contract rough fish removal activities, such moneys as may be necessary therefor are hereby appropriated and may be transferred to said revolving fund at any time by order of the commissioner of conservation from any moneys in the game and fish fund or other moneys deposited in the state treasury for the benefit of game and fish and not otherwise specifically appropriated for specific activities or projects. All balances now in said fund are hereby reappropriated.

g. Research and Planning	183,445	180,443
--------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—22

h. Pittman-Robertson Program	55,000	55,000
------------------------------	--------	--------

Approved Complement—47

Item h. shall continue to act as a revolving account into which moneys received from the federal government shall be paid. All moneys in said account shall be available for use and if said funds are insufficient to match the federal moneys available it may be supplemented by transfers of dedicated receipts of the division not otherwise allocated or if allocated not needed for the activity to which they are credited. Such transfers are hereby appropriated. All balances in said account are hereby reappropriated.

i. Dingel-Johnson Program	104,000	99,000
---------------------------------	---------	--------

Approved Complement—35

Item i. shall continue to act as a revolving account into which moneys received from the federal government shall be paid. All moneys in said account shall be available for use and if said funds are insufficient to match the federal moneys available it may be supplemented by transfers of dedicated receipts of the division not otherwise allocated or if allocated not needed for the activity to which they are credited.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Such transfers are hereby appropriated. All balances in said account are hereby reappropriated.

Provided that any balance remaining in the Pittman-Roberts or Dingell-Johnson accounts on June 30, 1961, and June 30, 1962, shall not cancel but be available for the following year.

Except for federal audit exceptions, none of the moneys appropriated by items h. and i. shall be expended on any project in which the cost of state participation exceed 25% of the cost of the entire project.

j. Firearms Safety

Salaries, supplies and expense ..	28,495	29,223
-----------------------------------	--------	--------

Approved Complement—2

Except as herein otherwise specifically provided, all amounts appropriated in this subdivision are to be charged against the game and fish fund and not against the general revenue fund. All receipts credited to the game and fish fund not herein authorized to be used or otherwise transferred shall be retained in the game and fish fund as a surplus.

All of the income, receipts, and fees collected by the division of game and fish, not appropriated or transferred to other divisions or departments of the state government by the provisions of this act, except attributable costs provided by Laws 1959, Chapter 667, shall be deposited in the state treasury to and for the benefit of the division of game and fish.

k. Acquisition of Wetlands for Wildlife Habitat	342,000	342,000
---	---------	---------

The above amount shall be appropriated from the wildlife acquisition account. This appropriation includes an amount sufficient to cover all necessary costs of land acquisition, care, improvements; and payments to

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

local subdivisions of government in lieu of taxes.

1. Public Access

For acquisition, improvement, development and maintenance of sites for public access to public waters and for lake improvement.

All moneys credited to the game and fish fund under Laws 1961, Chapter 585, are hereby appropriated to the commissioner of conservation for the foregoing purposes. Any balance remaining on June 30, 1962, shall not cancel but shall be available for the following year.

If for any reason less than \$100,000 is available in the game and fish fund under Laws 1961, Chapter 585, for the foregoing purposes in each of the fiscal years ending June 30, 1962, and June 30, 1963, so much thereof as may be necessary to provide \$100,000 for such purposes for each of the fiscal years ending June 30, 1962, and June 30, 1963, is appropriated from the game and fish fund regardless of sources.

Subd. 6. Division of Parks

a. Operations

1. Salaries	350,077	354,101
Approved Complement—52		

2. Supplies and expense	85,000	85,000
-------------------------------	--------	--------

b. For Drilling Wells at Flandrau State Park and Carlos State Park	11,000	
--	--------	--

c. Repair Flood Damage at Whitewater State Park	35,000	
---	--------	--

Sec. 36. SURVEYOR GENERAL OF LOGS AND LUMBER

Subdivision 1. Salaries	24,874	25,313
Approved Complement—4		

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense ..	5,228	4,094
----------------------------------	-------	-------

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 3. Scaling Fees	57,500	58,000
Sec. 37. STATE MAPPING AD- VISORY BOARD	36,000	36,000
Any balance remaining on June 30, 1962 shall not cancel but be available for the second year.		
Sec. 38. MINNESOTA WATER RESOURCES BOARD		
Subdivision 1. Salaries, supplies and expense	20,517	20,945
All hearings of the water resources board shall be solely in the performance of expressed statutory duties.		
Subd. 2. Special Water Laws Study	4,000	
The amount appropriated by subdivision 2 shall be used to investigate, study, revise and codify laws relating to the use, conservation and disposal of water in the state to effectuate the purposes and declared policy of M.S. Section 105.72. Any balance remaining on June 30, 1962, shall not cancel but shall be available for the following year. Reports and recommendations of the board shall be made to the legislature on or before January 15, 1963.		
Sec. 39. STATE SOIL CONSER- VATION COMMISSION		
Subdivision 1. Salaries	19,758	20,247
Approved Complement—3		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	42,480	42,675
Subd. 3. Farm Plans and Wat- ershed Planning	170,000	170,000
Subd. 4. Watershed Planning Team	35,000	35,000
The amounts appropriated shall be available for watershed protection activities of the state, and shall be used for surveys, investigations, planning (the assembling of preliminary engineering, economic, and related watershed		

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

data into a reasonable watershed plan), and advanced engineering study (the preparation of detailed designs, specifications, and engineering cost estimates of works of improvements) of watershed projects.

No moneys shall be approved for construction or installation for any works of improvement, or for soil surveys, or for any costs that local groups of people in a watershed are responsible for in any watershed project.

Funds shall be controlled by the State Soil Conservation Committee; and can be used to reimburse the United States Soil Conservation Service upon agreement between the State Soil Conservation Committee and the United States Soil Conservation Service state conservationist in Minnesota. Cooperation with the United States Soil Conservation Service in Minnesota in employment of personnel and in determining work schedules to accelerate the study, planning and detailed design function of watershed protection activities in Minnesota is authorized.

A report of the state's participation and progress in a watershed planning team shall be filed with the governor and the legislature by January 1963.

Sec. 40. BOARD OF HEALTH

Subdivision 1. Administration

a. Salaries 766,559 775,787

Approved Complement—
219-1962
217-1963

The amounts appropriated for salaries by the above item, subdivision 1. a., include salaries for items 1, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 9, 10, and 12 of Laws 1945, Chapter 609, Section 37, and for hospital licenses, and blood banks.

b. Supplies and expense 128,000 125,000

The amounts appropriated for

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

supplies and expense by the above item include supplies and expense for Items 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10 and 12 of Laws 1945, Chapter 609, Section 37, and for hospital licenses and blood banks.

Any amounts received from the City of Duluth and from St. Louis County are hereby reappropriated for supplies and expense. Grants in aid now or hereafter received from the federal government for any health assistance or health program or for administration under the jurisdiction of the department of health shall in the first instance, be credited to a federal grant fund, and shall be transferred therefrom to the credit of the proper account of the department of health upon certification of the executive secretary that the amounts so requested to be transferred have been earned or are required for the purposes and program intended. Moneys received by such federal grant fund need not be budgeted as such, provided the transfers from such fund are budgeted for allotment purposes in the appropriate appropriations. All receipts received from the National Office of Vital Statistics for microfilmed transcripts of vital statistics records shall be deposited in and for the benefit of the general revenue fund.

Provision has been made in Items a. and b. above so that contemplated reductions in federal grants in aid should not result in a reduction in personnel or expense in the laboratories operated by the board of health on the University campus.

The amounts appropriated by Items a. and b. include sufficient funds for controlling sanitary conditions of lumber camps and the protection of the health and safety of children in children's camps.

Subd. 2. Water Pollution Control	126,000	128,394
--	---------	---------

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Approved Complement—24

Provided, that of the amounts appropriated by subdivision 2 hereof, \$50,000 each year shall be transferred and reappropriated from the fund known as the game and fish fund on the books of the state auditor and the records of the game and fish division.

Subd. 3. Consultant on Alcoholism

a. Salaries, supplies and expense	13,965	13,997
---	--------	--------

Approved Complement—2

Subd. 4. Hotel Inspection

a. Salaries	82,881	85,125
-------------------	--------	--------

Approved Complement—16

b. Supplies and expense	22,947	20,862
-------------------------------	--------	--------

Subd. 5. Hospital and Medical Facilities Construction and Supervision

a. Salaries	85,398	87,368
-------------------	--------	--------

Approved Complement—11

b. Supplies and expense	6,395	6,390
-------------------------------	-------	-------

Subd. 6. Public Health Nursing	100,000	100,000
--------------------------------	---------	---------

Subd. 7. Radiation Health	25,000	25,000
---------------------------------	--------	--------

Approved Complement—4

Sec. 41 LIVESTOCK SANITARY BOARD

Subdivision 1. Salaries	320,359	326,831
-------------------------------	---------	---------

Approved Complement—49

Subd. 2. Supplies and Expense	418,445	264,015
-------------------------------	---------	---------

The appropriation herein made includes an amount sufficient for the purpose of testing poultry, including turkeys, for Pullorum Disease.

Subd. 3. Indemnities	25,000	25,000
----------------------------	--------	--------

Provided, that no payment for less than \$1 for indemnities be made under this appropriation.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 4. Contingent Fund for
Brucellosis Eradication 300,000

The above appropriation to be expended by the governor after consultation with the legislative advisory committee, as provided by law. The balance in said fund at the end of the fiscal year ending June 30, 1962 shall not cancel into the general revenue fund but shall be available for the same purpose for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1963.

Sec. 42. GOVERNOR'S HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION 15,061 15,107

Approved Complement—2

Sec. 43. FAIR EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES COMMISSION 33,203 34,000

Approved Complement—4

Provided that the salary of the executive director shall not exceed \$10,000 per year.

Sec. 44. WAR VETERANS AFFAIRS

Subdivision 1. Salaries 231,540 234,418

Approved Complement—41

Subd. 2. Supplies and expense 17,500 17,500

Subd. 3. Soldiers Welfare Emergency Relief 85,000 85,000

Provided, that of the amounts appropriated above, there shall be available \$7,500 each year for maintenance of the Marine Disabled Veterans' Rest Camp and \$7,500 each year for maintenance of the Big Island Veterans Rest Camp.

Subd. 4. War Orphans' Education Aid 2,000 2,000

Subd. 5. Disabled War Veterans' Relief 575,000 550,000

The amounts appropriated by subdivision 5 shall be available for Veterans' Relief to be administered by the commissioner of veterans' affairs for relief purposes as described in Laws 1941,

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Chapter 525, Sec. 10. No other moneys appropriated herein shall be used for relief or any work projects. The expenditures of the moneys appropriated by this section shall be subject to all the limitations and conditions imposed by Laws 1941, Chapter 525, upon the expenditures of the moneys herein appropriated, and all such limitations and conditions are hereby extended and reenacted except that the amounts allocated for Veterans' Relief shall be administered by the commissioner of veterans' affairs.

The Minnesota Public Relief Advisory Committee is hereby continued for the purposes of this subdivision and all provisions of Laws 1941, Chapter 525, relating thereto are hereby extended and reenacted.

Provided that the balance shall not cancel on June 30, 1962, but be available for the second year.

Subd. 6. War Veterans' and War Orphans' Education Aid	75,000	
---	--------	--

To be expended pursuant to M.S. 1957, Sec. 197.75, the balance on June 30, 1962 shall not cancel but be available for the following year.

Sec. 45. STATE LAW LIBRARY

Subdivision 1. Salaries	48,238	51,144
Approved Complement—8		
Subd. 2. Supplies and expense	1,350	1,350
Subd. 3. Books and Binding	60,000	

Any balance remaining on June 30, 1962 shall not cancel, but be carried forward to the following year.

Sec. 46. EMPLOYEES' COMPENSATION	76,999.76	
--	-----------	--

To be transferred by the state auditor to the department of labor and industry compensation revolving fund, in payment of ob-

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

ligations incurred by the following agencies in the amounts as indicated:

Health	10,469.48	
Administration	11,431.01	
State Auditor	13.56	
Business Development	2,757.46	
Taxation	10.43	
Civil Defense	297.54	
Labor Conciliator	6,891.63	
Surveyor General	443.71	
State Treasurer	262.87	
Insurance	24.88	
Livestock Sanitary Board	8,571.35	
Conservation	35,825.84	
Sec. 47. UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION		274,844.87

In reimbursement of unemployment compensation benefits paid for former employees of the following:

Agriculture, Dairy & Food	871.52
Conservation	257,530.27
Governor's Human Rights Commission ..	792.73
Livestock Sanitary Board	154.00
Military Affairs	3,552.24
Secretary of State—Motor Vehicle	8,202.75
State Auditor	456.25
Surveyor General	3,285.11

Provided that of the amount appropriated by Section 47, \$8,202.75 is to be paid from the highway user tax distribution fund, \$5,257.51 is to be paid from the building fund, and \$38,698.06

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

is to be paid from the game and fish fund.

Sec. 48. Employees, salary increases. The salaries of all employees, except attorneys appointed by the attorney general, in the unclassified service of the state for which an appropriation is made in this act, whose salary is not herein or otherwise fixed by law, shall be adjusted to the class of persons in the classified service performing comparable work and having comparable responsibility, as determined by the director of civil service but in no event to an amount in excess of the maximum of such class.

Sec. 49. Fees. The fees fixed for the various accounts for which an appropriation is made in this act pursuant to existing authority of law shall be neither increased nor decreased except with the approval of the commissioner of administration. All such fees shall be reviewed at least once each six months, and such adjustments shall be made to the end that the total fees received shall approximate the amount appropriated for the several funds.

Sec. 50. Unobligated balances. The unobligated balances on hand as of June 30, 1961, June 30, 1962, and June 30, 1963, in the several appropriations and accounts for each of the state departments or divisions for which an appropriation is made herein out of the general revenue fund, are hereby cancelled into said general revenue fund as of June 30, 1961, June 30, 1962, and June 30, 1963, and the unobligated balances on hand as of June 30, 1961, June 30, 1962, and June 30, 1963 appropriated out of any other funds, shall be cancelled into the fund from which they are appropriated as of June 30, 1961, June 30, 1962, and June 30, 1963. The provisions of this section shall not apply to aid contributions, or reimbursements, received from the federal government by the state; and all such federal aid, contributions or reimbursements are hereby reappropriated for the purpose of supplementing the appropriations herein provided.

Sec. 51. Income places in general revenue fund. Except as herein otherwise provided, and except as provided in Laws 1961, Chapter 600, all income, including fees or receipts of any nature whatsoever, except all federal aid, contributions or reimbursements received for any account of any division or department for which an appropriation is made in this act, shall be deposited in and for the benefit of the general revenue fund.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 52. **State inheritance tax, share of county.** The state auditor and state treasurer are hereby authorized to set aside in a separate account the amount due the several counties as their share of the state inheritance tax under the provisions of General Laws 1911, Chapter 209, Section 21-D, and acts amendatory thereof, and to pay to the county treasurer of the several counties such amounts at the end of each fiscal year.

Sec. 53. **Misappropriation of funds.** It shall be illegal for any state officer or head of any state department or any employee thereof to use moneys appropriated by this act, or fees collected, for any other purpose than the purpose for which such moneys have been appropriated and any such act by any such person shall be cause for immediate removal from the office or position he holds with the government of the state. Provided, however that funds may be transferred to the credit of the state employees' retirement fund and used for the purposes thereof, as provided by law.

Sec. 54. [15.056] **Publicity representatives.** No state department, bureau or division, whether the same operates on funds appropriated or receipts or fees of any nature whatsoever, except the highway department, the game and fish division and the division of employment security shall use any of such funds for the payment of the salary or expenses of a publicity representative. The head of any such department, bureau or division shall be personally liable for funds used contrary to this provision. This act shall not be construed, however, as preventing any such department, bureau or division from sending out any bulletins or other publicity required by any state law or necessary for the satisfactory conduct of the business for which such department, bureau or division was created.

Sec. 55. Notwithstanding any provision in this act to the contrary, the appropriations for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1961 which are to be expended for motor vehicles may be encumbered for such purposes prior to such date so that the motor vehicles may be delivered to the state by such date. *Motor vehicles of the Game Warden Service shall have printed thereon the markings required by Minnesota Statutes 1957, Section 168.012, as amended, for tax exempt vehicles.*

Sec. 56. **Legislative advisory committee.** Subdivision. 1. Whenever it becomes necessary in order to

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

meet the current demands upon the revenue fund for the payment of warrants issued or to be issued against said fund pursuant to appropriations, the governor after securing the recommendation of the legislative advisory committee, which shall be advisory only, or if there be no such committee, the governor, the state auditor, and the state treasurer, as a special committee, at any time prior to June 30, 1963, may authorize the issuance and sale of certificates of indebtedness of the state, payable out of said revenue fund, in such amount as may be necessary to pay such warrants; such certificates to be signed by the state treasurer, attested and recorded by the state auditor, and to be numbered serially and to be of such denomination and bear such dates of issue and of maturity and such rate of interest as the governor or such special committee shall determine; provided, that no such certificate shall mature after the current fiscal year, and provided further, that the aggregate amount of such certificate at any time outstanding shall never exceed \$26,000,000. The failure or refusal of the advisory committee, if there be one, to make a recommendation promptly shall be deemed a negative recommendation. If such funds are not available to retire any such certificate at maturity, the same may be refunded by the issuance of new certificates or may be extended by agreement with the holders thereof. Certificates issued and sold pursuant to the authorization of this act shall be retired out of the receipts of the revenue fund appropriated to the payment of the warrants issued against said fund but taken up with the proceeds of such certificates.

	1961	1962
a. Interest upon certificates	\$190,000	\$150,000

Subd. 2. The state board of investment, or its successor in authority, is hereby authorized to purchase the certificates of indebtedness herein authorized for any fund which it is authorized to invest, provided, it shall not purchase any such certificates bearing interest at a rate of less than one and one-half percent per annum.

Sec. 57. **Transfer of funds, state auditor.** The state auditor is hereby authorized and directed to transfer to the general revenue fund in the state treasury, all moneys credited to any fund established in connection with the payment of certificates of indebtedness when the purposes for which the act authorizing such certificates have been accomplished.

Subdivision 1. There is hereby transferred to the gen-

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

eral revenue fund the following sums to reimburse the general revenue fund for amounts transferred out of the general contingent fund for the following purposes, for the following years:

a. Income tax school fund for the department of education supplies and expense for the year ending June 30, 1961	\$14,606
b. Highway users tax distribution fund for secretary of state, motor vehicle division salaries for the year ended June 30, 1960	15,000
c. Game and fish fund for conservation administration supplies and expense for the year ended June 30, 1960	1,216

Subd. 2. There is hereby transferred to the general revenue fund the sum of \$585,149.59 to reimburse the general revenue fund for the cost of collecting the tax on gasoline and gasoline substitutes and the cost of bond premiums during the 1959-61 biennium, from the highway user tax distribution fund.

There is hereby transferred from the general revenue fund the sum of \$2,247.58 to correct an overestimate in the cost of collecting the tax on gasoline and gasoline substitutes during the 1957-59 biennium, the sum to be transferred to the highway user tax distribution fund. The provisions of subdivision 2 shall take effect upon passage of this act.

There is hereby transferred to the general revenue fund the sum of \$34,779.69 to reimburse the general revenue fund *for functions performed by the office of the state treasurer in mailing gas tax refunds during the 1959-61 biennium, from the highway user tax distribution fund.*

Subd. 3. All unexpended and unencumbered moneys in or which may hereafter accrue to the veterans' compensation fund in the state treasury are hereby transferred to the general revenue fund in the state treasury.

Subd. 4. All moneys collected for the teachers' retirement fund pursuant to the annual state tax levies therefor made prior to December 31, 1957; and in excess of the amount certified to the state auditor by the teachers' retirement board as the amount needed to meet the state's obligations is hereby transferred to the general revenue fund in the state treasury.

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 58. **Merit increases.** Notwithstanding any provision of Minnesota Statutes 1957, Chapter 43, as amended to the contrary, moneys appropriated by this act or any other appropriation law may be expended for merit increases and for longevity increases only in accordance with the following:

Merit increases and longevity increases shall not be granted during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1962, except that one merit or longevity increase may be granted to those persons who do not receive a pay increase by reason of the adoption of the civil service pay plan filed with the commissioner of administration to become effective on July 1, 1961.

These merit or longevity increases may be financed solely from departmental savings

One merit increase for each eligible position below the maximum of its range, or one longevity increase above the maximum may be granted for each eligible position during the fiscal year ending June 30, 1963.

The moneys for the payment of the merit or longevity increases authorized shall be financed as follows:

In departments having from 1 to 20 employees, sufficient moneys are provided by this act for the payment of the authorized merit and longevity increases.

In departments having from 21 to 50 employees, 75 percent of the moneys required have been provided in this act for the payment of authorized merit and longevity increases; the remaining 25 percent may be financed from departmental savings.

In departments having from 51 to 100 employees, 50 percent of the moneys required have been provided in this act for the payment of authorized merit and longevity increases; the remaining 50 percent may be financed from departmental savings.

In departments having from 101 and over employees, 40 percent of the moneys required have been provided in this act for the payment of authorized merit and longevity increases; the remaining 60 percent may be financed from departmental savings.

When a position at the maximum is vacated, an additional amount equal to one merit increase is available there-

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

for to be expended only at the times prescribed in the previous paragraphs.

Merit increases granted pursuant to this section shall be on the basis of established standards, but in no event to exceed one merit increase per eligible employee per fiscal year.

None of the moneys appropriated by this act or by any other law shall be expended during the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1962, for economic salary adjustments notwithstanding the provisions of law relating thereto to the contrary.

Sec. 59. None of the moneys appropriated by this act or any other appropriation law shall be expended in paying state officers or employees in the unclassified service for unused portions of annual leave allowances provided for by M.S. 1957, Section 351.12 for any greater period of time than is permitted state officers or employees in the classified service.

Sec. 60. **Approved complements.** Whenever an appropriation to any state department or agency for salaries discloses an approved complement, that department or agency, except for seasonal and part time employees, is limited in the employment of the number of persons indicated by such approved complement. The employment of seasonal and part time employees shall be in addition to the approved complement but subject to the approval of the commissioner of administration who shall determine the need therefor.

Additional employees over the number of the approved complement may be employed on the basis of public necessity or emergency with the written approval of the governor, but the governor shall not approve such additional personnel until he has consulted with the legislative advisory committee created by Laws 1943, Chapter 594, and such committee has made its recommendation upon the matter. Such recommendation shall be advisory only. Failure or refusal of the committee to make a recommendation promptly shall be deemed a negative recommendation. The provisions hereof shall extend to any other agency to which the present authority of the legislative advisory committee may be transferred, but shall be deemed to be repealed in case such authority shall be abolished.

Sec. 61. **Limitations on appropriations.** All the foregoing appropriations herein contained are to be ex-

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

pended subject to the provisions of Laws 1939, Chapter 431. No appropriation shall become available for expenditure until such estimates as required by Section 16, Article II, of such act shall have been approved by the commissioner of administration. No obligation involving expenditure of money shall be entered into unless there is a balance in the appropriation available not otherwise encumbered to pay obligations previously incurred.

Sec. 62. Furniture purchases from state reformatory. Provided, insofar as practicable, all furniture to be purchased by state departments from moneys made available in this act, shall be procured from the state reformatory for men, notwithstanding any other provisions to the contrary.

Sec. 63. None of the moneys appropriated by this act or any other law shall be expended in making any refund where the amount thereof is \$1.00 or less.

Sec. 64. [16.80] Central services revolving fund created. There is appropriated to the commissioner of administration annually all moneys in the central services revolving fund in the state treasury, which fund is hereby created. The following enumerated items are hereby transferred to and deposited in such revolving fund:

The balances of moneys heretofore appropriated and originating with:

\$5,000 from the state institutions contingent fund (in 1918) for the purposes of Laws 1917, Chapter 174.

\$5,000 from the state institutions contingent fund (in 1920) for the purposes of Laws 1917, Chapter 174.

\$15,000 by Laws 1941, Chapter 548, Sec. 22 (5).

\$20,000 by Extra Session Laws 1951, Chapter 1, Sec. 24 (3).

\$17,500 by Laws 1957, Chapter 929, Sec. 17 (6) and fees of the commissioner of administration for copies of documents and records appropriated by Minnesota Statutes 1957, Section 16.026.

\$10,000 from the General Contingent Fund to the state department revolving fund on June 7, 1960.

\$30,000 for the Minnesota administrative rules revol-

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

ing fund by Minnesota Statutes 1957, Section 15.047, Subdivision 3.

\$1,500 for a revolving fund for republishing the official state capitol guide books and history by Laws 1937, Chapter 396.

\$250,000 for a state department revolving fund by Laws 1957, Chapter 929, Section 17 (11).

Deposits for postage obligations appropriated by Minnesota Statutes 1957, Section 16.56.

All fees prescribed by Laws 1955, Chapter 847, and other provisions of the law not inconsistent therewith for the rendering of the services therein provided shall be deposited in the state treasury by the collecting department or agency and credited to the central services revolving fund.

All moneys in the state treasury credited to the central services revolving fund and any moneys which may hereafter be deposited therein are hereby appropriated annually to the commissioner of administration for the following purposes:

(a) The operation of a central store and equipment service;

(b) The operation of a central duplication and reproduction service;

(c) The purchase of postage and related items, and the refund of postage deposits, necessary to the operation of a central mailing service;

(d) The operation of a documents service as prescribed by Minnesota Statutes 1957, Section 16.026;

(e) The publication of administrative rules and regulations as prescribed by Minnesota Statutes 1957, Section 15.047;

(f) The publication of the official state capitol guide books and history as prescribed by Laws 1937, Chapter 396, as amended;

(g) The performing of services for any other state department or agency in conformity with Laws 1957, Chapter 929, Section 17 (11).

Except as specifically provided for by other statutory

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

provisions, each department or agency shall reimburse the central services revolving fund for the cost of all services, supplies, materials, labor and depreciation of equipment including reasonable overhead costs which the commissioner of administration is authorized and directed to furnish a department or agency. The cost of all publications or any other materials which may be produced by the commissioner of administration and financed from the central services revolving fund shall include reasonable overhead costs. The state auditor shall make appropriate transfers to the central services revolving fund when requested by the commissioner of administration. The commissioner of administration may make allotments, encumbrances, and disbursements in anticipation of such transfers. All such reimbursements and any other moneys received by the commissioner of administration under this act shall be deposited in the central services revolving fund.

Sec. 65. Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law to the contrary, the salaries of the state officers enumerated in this section and payable from the appropriations made by this act and other appropriation laws shall be fixed by the appointing authority but shall not exceed the following:

Commissioner of administration	\$16,000
Commissioner of agriculture, dairy and food	13,500
Commissioner of highways	16,000
Secretary and executive officer, department of health	13,500
Commissioner of taxation	16,000
Commissioner of employment security	13,500
Commissioner of conservation	13,500
Director of civil service	13,500
Deputy state auditor	10,500
Assistant Attorney General, fixed by the attorney general depending upon experience	9,000
	to 12,500
Labor conciliator	11,000
Commissioner of aeronautics	11,000
Commissioner of banks	12,000
Director of forestry	11,000
Director of game and fish	11,000
Director of lands and minerals	11,000
Commissioner of insurance	12,000
Commissioner of liquor control	11,000
State librarian	8,000

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Executive Officer—livestock sanitary board ..	11,000
Public examiner	12,000
Commissioner of securities	12,000
Commissioner of business development	12,000
Director of waters	10,000
Superintendent—crime bureau	10,000
Industrial commissioners (3)	10,000
Commissioner of veteran's affairs	10,000
Director of civil defense	10,000
Director of parks	10,000
Commissioner of iron range resources	10,000
Commandant—soldiers home	8,500
Secretary—compensation insurance board	8,000
Surveyor general	7,500

Approved June 9, 1961.

EXTRA SESSION

CHAPTER 89—S. F. No. 11

[Not Coded]

An act relating to the operations of state government; appropriating moneys for education and related purposes, including the University of Minnesota and its hospitals, aids to rural libraries, junior colleges, for a school construction loan program, the payment of agricultural agents, and limiting and regulating the use thereof; providing aid to school districts including those affected by gross earnings taxation and authorizing borrowing by school districts in anticipation of taxes and state aids; authorizing the power of eminent domain with certain of the funds provided hereby; transferring moneys between accounts and funds in the state treasury; controlling certain treasury receipts; and imposing conditions relative to the expenditure of public moneys.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Minnesota:

Section 1. Educational purposes, appropriations. Except as herein otherwise provided, the sums hereinafter set forth in the columns designated "APPROPRIATIONS", or so much thereof as may be necessary, are hereby appropriated out of the general revenue fund in the state treasury for the purposes specified in the following sections of this act, to be available for the fiscal years indicated for each purpose. The

Changes or additions indicated by *italics*, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.